

The Influence Of The Ethnomathematics-Based Multy Representation Discourse Learning Model On Mathematical Communication Skills And Self-Confidence Of Junior High School Students

Jaka Wijaya Kusuma^{1*}, Zaenuri Zaenuri², Rochmad Rochmad³, Emi Pujiastuti⁴,

Hamidah Hamidah⁵

^{1,5} Mathematics Education Study Program of Universitas Bina Bangsa, Indonesia

^{2,3,4} Mathematics Education Study Program of Universitas Negeri Semarang, Indonesia

*Corresponding Author: jakawijayak@gmail.com

Abstrak. Ethnomathematics-based multy representation discourse is a learning model that emphasizes the use of multi-representation in a classroom setting using cultural relationships in the context of life that can improve students' mathematical communication skills and self-confidence. The purpose of the study was to find out how the influence of the Ethnomathematics based diskursus multy Representation model on students' mathematical communication skills and self-confidence. This study used a type of pretest-posttest control group design experiment. This research was carried out in the even semester of 2022 with samples of class VII B as the experimental class and VII A as the control class. Data collection techniques use tests and questionnaires. Data analysis techniques use t-test analysis, Effect Size, and questionnaire percentage. Based on the results of the study, it is known that the influence of the Ethnomathematics based diskursus multy Representation learning model on students' mathematical communication skills is very high and student self-confidence after being given the Ethnomathematics based diskursus multy Representation learning model is relatively high.

Key words: Ethnomathematics; Multi Representation Discourse (DMR); Communication Skills; Self Confidence

INTRODUCTION

National Council of Teachers of Mathematics (2000) mentioned that one of the basic mathematical skills that students must have in learning mathematics is mathematical communication skills. National Council of Teachers of Mathematics (2000) and Baiduri et al. (2020) wrote's that mathematical communication skills are a way for students to express mathematical ideas either orally, in writing, drawings, diagrams, using objects, presenting in algebraic form, or using mathematical symbols. Baroody & Coslick (1993) also mentioned that there are at least two reasons why mathematical communication is so important, namely: (1) mathematics as language, meaning that mathematics is not just a thinking aid but mathematics helps to find patterns, solve problems, and communicate various ideas appropriately and concisely; (2) mathematics is learning as social activity, meaning that mathematics is a social activity in mathematics learning, as well as interaction between students

and teacher-student communication.

Teacher-to-student communication is an important part of mathematics learning in an effort to guide students to understand concepts or find solutions to a problem. It is also through communication that students can exchange and explain their ideas or understandings to their peers (Hendriana et al., 2013). A similar statement was expressed by Clark et al. (2005) who explained how important it is to have the ability to communicate mathematically because mathematical communication is a way and understanding to build meaning and explain one's ideas. Mathematical communication is one of the standard processes in learning Mathematics (Cumhur & Tezer, 2020), (Sumaji et al., 2019), and (Viseu & Oliveira, 2012).

Mathematical communication is one of the competencies that students need in real life and in learning Mathematics. In the classroom students always communicate with the teacher and other students in order to solve problems in mathematics, as well as to present mathematical

solutions or ideas to others. However, there are many difficulties with many reasons when they exchange information or communicate with others using mathematical language in class. Therefore, the ability to communicate Mathematics is one of the competencies needed by students. However, judging from the results of The Trends in International Mathematics and Science Study (TIMSS) 2015, it ranks Indonesian students 45th out of 50 countries in mathematical communication, and Program for International Student Assessment (PISA) 2018 which ranks Indonesian students 74th out of 79 countries in mathematical communication (OECD, 2019). The results of the Programme for International Student Assessment (PISA) Indonesia study have always been low in each year of the number of participating Countries. From 2000 to 2018 the achievement of Indonesia's PISA index did not experience a better increase (Saputri, 2021).

Furthermore, based on the results of previous studies, it is known that students' mathematical communication skills are still low. Österholm (2006) pointed out that students' mathematical communication skills are still considered low, especially the skills and accuracy of drama to observe or recognize a mathematical problem. Österholm (2006) results stated that respondents seemed to have difficulty articulating reasons for understanding a reading. Low mathematical communication skills are also shown in the study Zulkarnain (2013) i.e. students have not been able to communicate ideas properly. Phuong & Tuyet (2018) wrote in the results of his research that siswa is more interested in solving multiple-choice questions than questions that ask them to give an opinion, so that students only give short answers such as yes or no.

When a student is unable to describe their ideas logically, this is because the student cannot communicate his thoughts in words so that problems will arise because the student cannot describe his mathematical ideas coherently (Baxter et al., 2005). This problem certainly requires attention so that a solution can be found to improve students' communication skills in mathematics. Improving students' mathematical communication skills must join hands with the learning process. We can optimize communication skills by applying learning models that provide opportunities for students to discuss and interact with each other so that their mathematical communication skills improve (Tinungki, 2015). Pugalee (2001) further stated

that in order for students to be trained in their mathematical communication skills, in learning students need to be accustomed to providing arguments for each answer and providing responses to answers given by others, so that what is being learned becomes more meaningful to them.

The results of interviews with mathematics teachers are known that in general, many mathematics teachers think that mathematics is a difficult lesson. Furthermore, it is known that not a few students do not have confidence (self-confidence) in their ability to solve the given questions and choose to cheat on friends' answers. Self-confidence or self-confidence is the most valuable attribute in a person in social life, because with self-confidence, a person is able to actualize all the potential that exists in himself (Andayani & Amir, 2019).

So that in this study, an appropriate learning model will be chosen to influence students' mathematical communication skills and self-confidence. One of them is the Multy Representation Discourse (DMR) model. The DMR model is a learning model that emphasizes class arrangements and group work for students so that when learning takes place students can discuss between groups to solve problems (Suendang, 2017). The stages in this DMR model greatly influence students' ability to communicate, because students are organized in a group to exchange opinions. This is also expected to provide opportunities for students to increase their confidence in sharing forums to solve problems.

Based on the results of research conducted by Amani (2021) obtained the learning model of the Multy Representation Discourse can improve the ability to understand mathematical concepts and self-efficacy of students. Furthermore, the results of Rahmawati (2019) research are known that the Multy Representation Discourse learning model can improve students' representation and communication skills. This reinforces that the Multy Representation Discourse learning model can be used to address research problems.

On the other hand, Ethnomathematicss is interpreted as the study of mathematics (mathematical ideas) and its relationship with culture in the context of social life in society (Gerdes, 2010). This is in line with Rosa & Orey (2011) and Albanese & Perales Palacios (2015) opinion that Ethnomathematicss is a study that examines mathematical ideas or practices in various cultures that show a reciprocal

Commented [A1]:

Your research problem is only obtained from PISA survey data. Please describe the problem from other data.

Commented [A2]:

Typo. Please check again.

relationship between the two. To bring out students' love for culture as well as hone students' ability to communicate on cultural topics, the DMR learning model will be collaborated with Ethnomathematics. The collaboration between the DMR learning model and Ethnomathematics is on the given problem, which is culture-based.

XXX

The purpose of this study is to find out how the influence of the Ethnomathematics-based multy representation discourse learning model on students' mathematical communication skills and self-confidence. [The formulation of the problem is:

Are the mathematical communication skills of students given Ethnomathematics-based multy representation discourse learning model better than conventional models?

How does the Ethnomathematics-based multy representation discourse learning model affect students' mathematical communication skills?

How is the student's self-confidence after being given the Ethnomathematics-based multy representation discourse learning model?]

METHODS

The proximity of this study is quantitative. Cresweel stated that the quantitative approach is the measurement of objective quantitative and statistical data through scientific calculations derived from a sample of people or residents who are asked to answer a number of questions about the survey to determine the frequency and percentage of their responses (Creswell, 2015). This type of research uses experimental research and uses pretest posttest control group design. This p enelitian population is class VII students at SMP Negeri 01 Tanara for the 2021/2022 school year and the ampelis the entire population, namely class VIIA and VIIB students who are taken by saturated sampling.

Data obtained from mathematical communication skills tests and self-confidence questionnaires. The test is made based on indicators of mathematical communication skills in the form of 4 essay questions. The indicators of communication skills are 1) writing, which is explaining the idea or situation of an image or graph in its own words in written form; 2)

drawing, that is, stating a situation with a drawing or graph; 3) mathematical expression, that is, expressing a situation into the form of a mathematical model and solving it. The self-confidence questionnaire is made based on self-

confidence indicators, namely believing in one's own abilities, having a sense of responsibility, wanting to achieve high achievements, not giving up easily, having the courage to act, as many as 26 statements.

The self-confidence questionnaire will be calculated by the following formula:

$$X = \frac{\text{total score}}{\text{number of students}} \times 100$$

The criteria for assessing self-confidence according to Arwadi (2021) is:

Table 1. Self Confidence Criteria

Interval	Category
25 - 39	Very Low
40 - 54	Low
55 - 69	Keep
70 - 84	High
85 - 100	Very High

Then the mathematical communication skills test data is processed using the help of Microsoft Excell and SPSS 19 software with the following steps:

Calculates flattening and standard deviation.

Test the normality and homogeneity of sample data.

Average Difference Test.

Test effect size

Test effect size (Umam & Jiddiyah, 2021)

is:

$$d = \frac{M_2 - M_1}{S_{pooled}}$$

Information:

d : Cohen's effect size

M₁ : average pretest value

M₂ : average posttest value

S_{pooled} : combined of standard deviation values

The combined formula of the standard deviation value is:

$$S_{pooled} = \sqrt{\frac{(SD_1)^2 + (SD_2)^2}{2}}$$

Information:

(SD₁)² : Pretest score variance

(SD₂)² : Posttest score variance

Table 2. Interpretation of Values Cohen's d

Cohen's d	Criterion
d ≥ 2.1	Very High
0.8 ≤ d ≤ 2.0	High
0.5 ≤ d ≤ 0.79	Keep

Commented [A3]: Please explain the urgency of your research.

Commented [A4]: Include this to the methodology section.

Commented [A5]: Please rewrite your formula. Not in the form of pictures.

Commented [A6]: Please rewrite your formula. Not in the form of pictures.

$0.2 \leq d \leq 0.49$	Low
$0.0 \leq d \leq 0.19$	Very Low

RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

Based on descriptive analysis using spss version 16, the following data were obtained:

Table 3. Descriptive Statistics of Pretest and Posttest Data

	Pretest				Posttest			
	n	\bar{X}	Max	Min	n	\bar{X}	Max	Min
Experiment	20	50	65	35	20	78	90	60
Control	20	49.5	65	30	20	69.5	80	60

The results of table 3 show that in general the experimental class is higher than the control class descriptively. To find out the differences

significantly will be presented a table of statistical test results.

Table 4. Data Postes Prerequisite Test Results

	Normality Test	Homogeneity Test
Experiment	0.216	0.714
Control	0.128	0.714
Sig (α)	0.05	0.05
Conclusion	Normality	Homogen

Table 5. Test t Results

	Postest
tcount	6.198
ttable	2.093
Sig (α)	0.000
Conclusion	H1 Accepted

accepted. So it can be concluded that the mathematical communication skills of students who are given learning the Multy Representation Discourse model based on Ethnomathematicss are better than in conventional classes.

From tabel 5 obtained significant values contained in the independent t test of 0.000 dan t_{count} 6.198. It can be seen that the sig value < 0.05 and value $t_{count} > t_{table}$ so H_0 rejected and H_1

Furthermore, the influence of the Ethnomathematicss-based Multy Representation Discourse learning model on students' mathematical communication skills is determined from the effect size (d) value written by (Umam & Jiddiyah, 2021).

Table 6. Effect Size Test Results (d)

Average		Standard Deviation		S_{pooled}	d
Pretest	Posttest	Pretest	Posttest		
50	78	8.11	6.96	8.01	3.49

Based on tabel 6 it is known that the value of cohen's d is as large as 3,49. This shows that $3,49 \geq 2,1$ which means it has a very high influence based on the table of interpretation criteria of cohen's values d. The conclusion is that the influence of Ethnomathematicss-based

Multy Representation Discourse learning on students' mathematical communication skills is classified as very high .

To answer the formulation of the third problem, student self-efficacy questionnaire data will be processed.

Table 7. Self Confidence Results

Aspects	Indicators	%	Category
Self-belief	Believe in one's own abilities	88	Very High
	Act independently in making decisions	78	High
Have a positive self-concept	Responsible	84	High
	Want to achieve high achievers	81	High
	Not easy to give up	79	High
Dare to express an opinion	Memiliki keberanian untuk bertindak	88	Very High
Average		83	High

It can be seen in Table 7, that self-confidence in the experimental class obtained a high percentage of self-confidence. There are 4 indicators that are categorized as high and 2 indicators that are categorized as very high. The average self confidence in the experimental class obtained a percentage of 83% where the figure was categorized as high self-confidence. In conclusion, there is a model of learning Discourse Multy Representation based on Ethnomathematicss high influence on student self-confidence.

It is significantly known that the Ethnomathematicss-based Multy Representation discourse model affects students' mathematical communication skills and self-confidence. This is because at the stage of the Discourse model Multy Representation contributes greatly to students' communication skills, including:

Students have discussions with predetermined groups.

Each group discussed the material and problems provided and each member recorded the results of the discussion in the student worksheet (LKPD).

One did a presentation and each group of students questioned each other.

Teacher as a facilitator and straighten out the material and solve the problem if there are obstacles.

According to Sari (2019) by applying the learning model discourse Multy Representation students are actively involved in the learning process, students will feel that learning is fun, effective and fast. Students' abilities are more honed by getting students used to expressing their opinions. The forum that created the atmosphere of the discussion also forced students who were embarrassed to ask questions to participate in the discussion.

Furthermore, collaborating Ethnomathematicss in learning models contributes greatly to the student's ability to communicate his ideas. This is because the problems discussed are closely related to the culture and environment around the students, so that students are more familiar and able to provide meaningful arguments. As previous researchers said that Ethnomathematicss is basically Mathematics practiced among cultural groups that people around them are very familiar with (Rosa & Orey, 2011), (Albanese & Perales Palacios, 2015), and (Mosimege, 2012).

Furthermore, the relationship with student self-confidence, namely the learning process at the DMR stage indirectly contributes greatly to students' self-confidence. Because students are given problems that are familiar and easy to understand, so students begin to feel confident that they will be able to solve the problem correctly. This is in line with Herdiana et al (2021) research that the Multy Representation Discourse learning model is a student-centered learning by generating group discussions and requiring students to have the courage to expresstheir opinions. Most students at multy representation discourse learning have the courage to act, for example acting in expressing an opinion, asking a friend or teacher if there is a difficulty he is going through. Therefore, the indicators of having the courage to act are categorized very high.

CONCLUSION

The conclusion in this study is that the influence of the ethnomathematics-based multy representation discourse learning model on students' mathematical communication ability is classified as very high and student self-confidence after being given a learning model of the ethnomathematics-based multy representation discourse is relatively high. The suggestion for further research is to apply the ethnomathematicss-based multy representation discourse learning model accompanied by a more LKPD so that the problems given are more numerous and varied covering more cultures.

REFERENCES

- Albanese, V., & Perales Palacios, F. J. (2015). *Enculturation with ethnomathematical microprojects: From culture to mathematics*.
- Amani, F. (2021). Pengaruh Model Pembelajaran Diskursus Multy Representasi Terhadap Kemampuan Pemahaman Konsep Matematis dan Self Efficacy Peserta Didik. *Skripsi*, Tidak Diterbitkan. Lampung:UIN Raden Intan.
- Andayani, M., & Amir, Z. (2019). Membangun Self-Confidence Siswa melalui Pembelajaran Matematika. *Desimal: Jurnal Matematika*, 2(2), 147–153. <https://doi.org/10.24042/djm.v2i2.4279>
- Arwadi, F. (2021). Pendekatan Pendidikan Matematika Realistik terhadap Hasil Belajar Matematika dan Self Confidence Siswa

Commented [A7]:
Please correct this writing again. 1 paragraph should consist of at least 3 sentences.

- SMP. *PLUSMINUS: Jurnal Pendidikan Matematika*, 1(1), 1–16.
- Baiduri, Jamil, A. F., & Javandas, H. M. (2020). The Effect of Learning Using Think- Pair-Share and Make a Match Models on the Students' Mathematical Communication Skills. *International Journal of Innovation, Creativity and Change*, 14(2), 800–816.
- Baroody, A. J., & Coslick, R. T. (1993). *Problem solving, reasoning, and communicating, K-8: Helping children think mathematically*. Merrill.
- Baxter, J. A., Woodward, J., & Olson, D. (2005). Writing in mathematics: an alternative form of communication for academically low-achieving students. *Learning Disabilities Research & Practice*, 20(2), 119–135.
- Clark, K. K., Jacobs, J., Pittman, M. E., & Borko, H. (2005). Strategies for building mathematical communication in the middle school classroom: Modeled in professional development, implemented in the classroom. *Current Issues in Middle Level Education*, 11(2), 1–12.
- Creswell, J. (2015). *Riset pendidikan: Perencanaan, pelaksanaan, dan evaluasi riset kualitatif & kuantitatif*.
- Cumhur, M. G., & Tezer, M. (2020). Evaluation of Primary School Mathematics Curricula of Northern and Southern Cyprus for NCTM Principles and Standards. *Revista Romaneasca Pentru Educatie Multidimensională*, 12(3), 01–23. <https://doi.org/10.18662/rrem/12.3/306>
- Gerdes, P. (2010). Exploration of technologies, emerging from African cultural practices, in mathematics (teacher) education. *ZDM*, 42(1), 11–17.
- Hendriana, H., Sumarmo, U., & Rohaeti, E. E. (2013). Kemampuan Komunikasi Matematik Serta Kemampuan dan Disposisi Berpikir Kritis Matematis. *Jurnal Matematika Dan Pendidikan Matematika*, 2(1), 35–45.
- Herdiana, L., Zakiah, N. E., & Sunaryo, Y. (2021). Penerapan Model Pembelajaran Diskursus Multy Representacy (Dmr) Terhadap Kemampuan Pemahaman Matematis Siswa. *J-KIP (Jurnal Keguruan Dan Ilmu Pendidikan)*, 2(1), 9. <https://doi.org/10.25157/j-kip.v2i1.4784>
- Mosimege, M. (2012). Methodological challenges in doing ethnomathematical research. *International Journal of African Renaissance Studies-Multi-, Inter-and Transdisciplinarity*, 7(2), 59–78.
- National Council of Teachers of Mathematics. (2000). Principles and Standards for School Mathematics. Reston, VA: Author.
- Österholm, M. (2006). Metacognition and reading-criteria for comprehension of mathematics texts. *Conference of the International Group for the Psychology of Mathematics Education, 16–21 July, Prague, Czech Republic*, 4, 289–296.
- Phuong, T. N., & Tuyet, T. L. T. (2018). Some Obstacles In Mathematical Communication Of Students While Learning Continous Functions Lesson. *ASEAN/Asian Academic Society International ...*, 2014, 389–402.
- Pugalee, D. K. (2001). Writing, mathematics, and metacognition: Looking for connections through students' work in mathematical problem solving. *School Science and Mathematics*, 101(5), 236–245.
- Rahmawati, U. (2019). Pengembangan Perangkat Pembelajaran Matematika Model Kooperatif Tipe Diskursus Multi Representasi Untuk Meningkatkan Kemampuan Representasi Siswa. *Skripsi*, Tidak Diterbitkan. Surabaya: UIN Sunan Ampel.
- Rosa, M., & Orey, D. C. (2011). Ethnomathematics: the cultural aspects of mathematics. *Revista Latinoamericana de Etnomatemática: Perspectivas Socioculturales de La Educación Matemática*, 4(2), 32–54.
- Saputri, rizka dwi. (2021). *Pengaruh Model Pembelajaran Diskursus Multy Representacy dengan Pendekatan Reciprocal Terhadap Kemampuan Pemecahan Masalah Matematis dan Self Confidence*.
- Sari, N. R. (2019). ... *Model Pembelajaran Diskursus Multy Representacy Dalam Meningkatkan Hasil Belajar Pada Mata Pelajaran Pai Di Smpn 03 Seluma*.
- Suendang, T. (2017). Pengaruh Kemampuan Penalaran Matematis Ditinjau dari Perspektif Gender Melalui Pendekatan Open-Ended di SMP Patra Mandiri 1 Palembang. *Skripsi*, Tidak Diterbitkan. Palembang: UIN Raden Fatah.
- Sumaji, Sa'Dijah, C., Suiswo, & Sisworo. (2019). Students' problem in communicating mathematical problem solving of Geometry. *IOP Conference Series: Earth and Environmental Science*, 243(1). <https://doi.org/10.1088/1755->

1315/243/1/012128

- Tinungki, G. M. (2015). The Role of Cooperative Learning Type Team Assisted Individualization to Improve the Students' Mathematics Communication Ability in the Subject of Probability Theory. *Proc.of the Fifth Conference for the Psychology of Mathematics Education*, 6(32), 27–31.
- Umam, H. I., & Jiddiyah, S. H. (2021). Pengaruh Pembelajaran Berbasis Proyek Terhadap Keterampilan Berpikir Kreatif Ilmiah Sebagai Salah Satu Keterampilan Abad 21. *Jurnal Basicedu*, 5(1), 350–356. <https://doi.org/10.31004/basicedu.v5i1.645>
- Viseu, F., & Oliveira, I. B. (2012). Open-ended tasks in the promotion of classroom communication in Mathematics. *International Electronic Journal of Elementary Education*, 4(2), 287–300.
- Zulkarnain, I. (2013). *Kemampuan Pemahaman dan Komunikasi Matematis Siswa dalam Pembelajaran Kooperatif Berbasis Konflik Kognitif*. Disertasi Universitas Pendidikan Indonesia.